ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 20, 2013
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Vice Chair
Senator Bert Stedman

Senat or Charlie Huggins

Senat or Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 57

"An Act relating to parental involvenent in education; adjusting
pupil transportation funding; anending the tine required for
enployers to give tenured teachers notification of their
nonretention; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSSB 57(EDC) OQUT OF COW TTEE
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practi ces Comm ssi on
Davi d DeVaughn
Eric Fry
Martin Laster
Mel ody Mann
Frances Roberts

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 57

SHORT TITLE: LI TERACY, PUPIL TRANSP, TEACHER NOTI CES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STEVENS

02/ 15/ 13 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 15/ 13 (S) EDC, FIN
03/ 13/ 13 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 20, 2013



03/ 13/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d
03/ 13/ 13 (S) M NUTE( EDC)
03/ 20/ 13 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

TIM LAMKI N, staff

Senator Gary Stevens

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Described the changes in the proposed CS for
SB 57, on behal f of the sponsor.

SUSAN MCCAULEY, Director

Teachi ng and Lear ni ng Support

Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 57.

DAVI D JONES, Assistant Superintendent

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School District

Kenai, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Urged the commttee to pass the bill.

LUKE FULP, Chief Business Oficial

Mat - Su Bor ough School District

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed support of all conponents in the
bill.

PEGGY COMN, Superi ntendent

North Sl ope Borough School District

Barrow, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 57.

JOHN ALCANTRA, Governnent Rel ations

NEA Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of SB 57.

BRUCE JOHNSQN, Executive Director

Al aska Council of School Adm nistrators

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 57.

ERI C FRY, Public Information
Ofice of the Conm ssi oner

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 20, 2013



Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded informati on about his background as
part of the confirnmation process.

MARTI N LASTER, Director

Educati on Leadershi p Program

Uni versity of Al aska - Sout heast

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Shared information about hinself as part of
the confirmation process.

DAVI D DEVAUCHN, Teacher

Nort h Pol e, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded informati on about his background as
part of the confirmation process.

MELCDY MANN, Teacher

Col ony Hi gh School

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded informati on about her background as
part of the confirmation process.

FRANCES ROBERTS, Teacher

Hormer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded informati on about her background as
part of the confirnmation process.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8. 03: 26 AM

CHAIR GARY STEVENS called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Stedman, Huggins, Gardner, Dunleavy, and
Chair Stevens.

SB 57-LI TERACY, PUPI L TRANSP, TEACHER NOTI CES

8:03: 52 AM
CHAI R STEVENS announced that the first order of business would
be SB 57. He noted it is the second hearing of the bill.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY noved to adopt CSSB 57, |abeled 28-LS0474\ N, as
t he wor ki ng docunent .

CHAI R STEVENS obj ected for discussion purposes.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 20, 2013



TIM LAMKIN, staff, Senator Gary Stevens, sponsor of SB 57,
descri bed the changes in the new CS. He explained that the first
change is found on page 1, line 7. At the request of the
Department of Education, and in reflection of the fiscal note
to avoid hiring additional staff at the state level to
coordinate data with local districts in gathering information
about parents statewide or at a local level, a change was nmade
that places that responsibility on the school districts since
they already have that data and parents are nore accustoned to
receiving information directly fromthe districts, as opposed to
the state. The change only refers to publishing and distributing
panphl ets to parents at the |ocal |evel

MR. LAMKIN explained that subsection (b) on page 2, naintains
that the state would continue to have a publicity canpaign using
local nedia outlets to pronote parental involvenment in early
literacy by third grade. He related that Section 2, page 2,
reflects the Consunmer Price Index (CPl) annual adjustnment, based
on  Anchorage's inflationary CPI i ndex, regarding pupi
transportation. That is consistent with |anguage that was passed
unani nously by the Senate | ast year.

He said that Section 3 is the "pink slip section" of the bill.
In instances when school districts are not aware of their
budgetary | evels or expectations, they are obliged, by March 16,
to issue pick slips to allow non-tenured faculty to be notified
of a potential lay off or non-retention the follow ng school
year. This is an effort to synchronize the budget process of the
legislature with that date, rather than creating unnecessary
angst at the district level. He noted that Section 3 has been on
t he books for sone tine - since 1949. The March 16 date has been
mai nt ai ned for decades.

He related that Section 4 repeals a law that was passed | ast
year with regard to pupil transportation at a fixed rate of 1.5
percent. The average approxinmate CPl inflation rate is about 3
percent annually. Section 5 is applicability |anguage necessary
for existing contracts as it relates to the pink slip provision,
allowi ng those contracts to expire before the changes are nmade.
Section 6 applies an effective date of July 2013.

8:08: 15 AM

SENATOR GARDNER referred to Section 1 and asked if school
districts could make that information available to parents by
sending it honme with their children; it does not require posta
di stri bution.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 20, 2013



MR. LAMKIN answered that is correct. A nunber of districts are
already in conpliance; the bill would ensure that all districts

conpl y.
SENATOR GARDNER asked if there was a fiscal note for Section 2

MR LAMKIN reported that the original fiscal note reflects
personal services of $97,500, which would be renoved in version
N of SB 57.

CHAIR STEVENS asked the Departnment of FEducation & Early
Devel opnent (DEED) to address the change of renoving the
departnment from the obligation to distribute information to
parents, which would require |ess staffing.

8:09: 53 AM
SUSAN  MCCAULEY, Director, Teaching and Learning Support,
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent, answer ed

guestions related to SB 57. She said the previous fiscal note
reflected the need for the departnent to contact the parents of
45,000 students regarding the distribution of material related
to early literacy. The change in version N will result in a
change to the fiscal note. The bill does naintain the
departnment's responsibility for an annual nedi a canpai gn.

CHAI R STEVENS commented it makes sense for school districts to
make contact with parents.

VB. MCCAULEY agreed. She added that schools often have
el ectronic newsletters and other in-place comunication nethods
w th parents.

8:11: 50 AM
CHAIR STEVENS noted the departnment is still providing handouts
to school districts.

M5. MCCAULEY said the departnent's intent is to provide
consi stent, accurate information that reflects current research
regarding early literacy.

SENATOR STEDMVAN voi ced concern about Section 2. He said indexing
into the CPI creates fornula-driven issues. He opined that, in
light of decreasing revenue, it is inportant to consider
challenges to the operating budget that are driven by formula
I Ssues.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 20, 2013



CHAI R STEVENS inquired if Senator Stednman was confortable noving
the bill on to the Senate Finance Committee to deal with those
i ssues.

SENATOR STEDVAN replied yes.
CHAI R STEVENS opened public testinony.

DAVI D JONES, Assistant Superintendent, Kenai Peninsula Borough
School District, urged the commttee to pass the bill.

LUKE FULP, Chief Business Oficial, Mt-Su Borough School
District, expressed support of all conponents in the bill.

PEGGY COWAN, Superi nt endent North Slope Borough School
District, testified in support of SB 57. She pointed out that
many of the issues are state wi de, including providing for pupil
transportation with state funds.

8:16: 00 AM

JOHN ALCANTRA, Governnent Relations, NEA Al aska, testified in
favor of SB 57. He referred to a letter of support from the
presi dent of NEA - Alaska, Ron Fuhrer. He voiced concerns on the
dates <contained in the bill regarding teacher tenure. He
suggested May 20 as a conprom se date.

BRUCE JOHNSON, Executive Director, Alaska Council of School
Adm nistrators, testified in support of SB 57. He commented on
non-retention and lay-offs. He pointed out that districts are
not going to wait until My 15 to determ ne whether they are
going to keep tenured and non-tenured teachers. He nuintained
that Alaska's school districts will approach that issue in a
hi ghly professional manner and give thenselves a cushion if
funding is unknown. Districts in rural Alaska are currently
issuing contracts in February in order to get their staffing
plan in place.

8:19: 07 AM
SENATOR GARDNER asked if the date of the job fairs would change
due to the date of My 15.

MR. JOHNSON replied that he did not think so because the rest of
the nation operates on simlar tinelines. He reiterated that
districts would determne staffing retention earlier, allow ng
t hose non-retained teachers to attend job fairs.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 20, 2013



SENATOR GARDNER asked for M. Johnson's opinion about anending
the April 20 date.

VR. JOHNSON answered that the Alaska Council of  Schoo
Adm nistrators has not discussed it. He added it is good for
managenent to have as nuch flexibility as possible.

8:20: 39 AM
CHAI R STEVENS cl osed public testinony.

8:20: 50 AM

SENATOR GARDNER noved an amendnment to change the date to Apri
20, as a conprom se, because it is after the |legislative
adj ournnent date and school districts should be aware of their
funding by then. She said the change of date would al so neet the
needs of teachers and the districts.

CHAIR STEVENS saw no mjor problem wth the conceptua
amendnent .

SENATOR DUNLEAVY said he woul d not favor the anmendnent.

CHAI R STEVENS asked if the departnent has an opinion on the
proposed anmendnent .

SENATOR HUGGE NS commented that M. Johnson just reported that
di strict managenent could exercise a date change. It is to the
advantage to have maximum flexibility for both the enpl oyee and
managemnent .

SENATOR DUNLEAVY understood that M. Alcantra stated that having
the date as close as possible to the end of the |legislative
session gives school districts an advantage. He naintai ned that
April 15 is too early. He recomended staying with the date
contained in the bill.

8:23:24 AM

M5. MCCAULEY said Senator Dunleavy's comrents are simlar to M.
Johnson's and M. Alcantra's coments, rather than to the
department's.

CHAI R STEVENS decl ared that there is no rush on the bill and the
commttee could choose to take nore tine to consider it.

SENATOR STEDVAN said he was ok with noving the bill.

SENATOR GARDNER wi t hdr ew her anendnent.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 20, 2013



CHAI R STEVENS appreciated the testifier's conments.
CHAI R STEVENS renoved his objection.

8:24: 32 AM

SENATOR DUNLEAVY noved to report CS for SB 57, version N, from
commttee, with individual recomendations and attached fiscal
not e(s).

CHAI R STEVENS announced that w thout objection, CSSB 57(EDC) is
reported fromthe Senate Education Standing Comm ttee.

8:25:12 AM
At ease
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS
Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practi ces Comr ssi on
8:27:47 AM

CHAIR STEVENS announced that the next business before the
commttee would be the confirmation hearing on nom nees for the
Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practice Conm ssion.

ERIC FRY, Public Information, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment (DEED), provided
informati on about his background as part of the confirmation
process.

CHAIR STEVENS asked M. Fry why he wanted to serve on the
Conmmi ssi on.

MR. FRY replied that he is a parent with two children who
attended public schools, and he was asked to serve on the
Comm ssion and wanted to do his bit for the departnent.

CHAIR STEVENS asked how long M. Fry has served on the
Conmi ssi on.

MR. FRY answered three years.

CHAI R STEVENS i nquired why he would like to continue to serve on
t he Conmmi ssi on.

MR. FRY replied that he is inpressed with the Comm ssion and its

menbers who are nostly teachers or admnistrators. He stated
that he is also inpressed with the Executive Director, Patricia

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 20, 2013



Truman, who does a lot of outreach, prevention, and problem
resolution. Most of the conplaints have to do with teachers that
have left their contracts before they have ended. Districts have
the option of requesting a consequence for that. There have been
hardly any instances of when a teacher has harnmed a child. He
concluded that teachers are doing a very good job of follow ng
rul es of ethics.

8:31:45 AM
CHAI R STEVENS asked if the tine commtnent is fairly mninal

MR. FRY answered that it is. There are only three short neetings
a year. He commented that the Comm ssion runs very snoothly.

MARTI N LASTER, Di rector, Educati on Leader ship Pr ogr am
University of Alaska - Southeast, shared information about
hi msel f as part of the confirmation process.

CHAI R STEVENS asked if M. Laster has served on the Conm ssion
previ ously.

MR. LASTER answered that he was nom nated recently.

CHAI R STEVENS i nquired what M. Laster brings to the Conm ssion.
MR. LASTER replied that he brings a couple of things to the
Comm ssion. One is by design; he qualifies as the H gher
Educati on Representative to the Comm ssion. Also, he said he was

a superintendent in Alaska for about 20 years and also a
principal and a teacher.

CHAI R STEVENS asked how nuch time M. Laster anticipates will be
needed to serve on the conmttee.

MR. LASTER responded that it would not be a burdensone anount of
time and considered it an honor to serve. He spoke well of the
ot her Conmi ssioners. He related that the job is a way to give
back to the state due to the dual enphasis of protecting
children and teachi ng professionals.

CHAI R STEVENS asked where M. Laster has worked.

MR. LASTER answered Mat-Su, North Sl ope, Craig, and Puget Sound.
CHAI R STEVENS appreci ated his service.

8:35:27 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -9- March 20, 2013



SENATOR GARDNER asked about two publications regarding extra-
curricular activities as predictors of success and urban versus
rural success.

MR. LASTER expl ained he was working in Denver in the Bureau of
Educati on Research when the topic "there are better predictors
than grades"” was assigned to him He said he now includes the
whol e range of activities as predictors of success. The second
topic was his dissertation witten for the Colorado School
Boards, State Board of Education, and Departnment of Education
regarding equity in gifted services between rural and urban
schools. He found that the greater the econony, the greater of
the ability of a district to provide opportunities for advanced
st udent s.

CHAI R STEVENS commented that standardized tests do not equal a
good educat i on.

MR. LASTER agreed. He thanked the comm ttee.

8:39:51 AM
DAVI D  DEVAUGHN, Teacher, provided information about hi s
background as part of the confirmation process.

CHAIR STEVENS asked M. DeVaughn if he has served on the
Comm ssion in the past.

MR. DEVAUGHN replied that he has not.

CHAI R STEVENS asked what M. DeVaughn brings to the Comm ssion.
MR. DEVAUGHN spoke of his 13 years of teaching and coaching
experience. He wshed to continue with the good work the
Conmm ssi on does.

CHAI R STEVENS t hanked him for his work.

MR. DEVAUGHN t hanked the commttee for allowing himto testify.
8:41:23 AM

MELODY MANN, Teacher, Colony Hi gh School, provided information

about her background as part of the confirmation process.

CHAI R STEVENS asked if M. Mann has previously served on the
Comm ssi on.

M5. MANN sai d no.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 10- March 20, 2013



CHAI R STEVENS i nqui red what Ms. Mann brings to the Conm ssion.

M5. MANN stated that she is a product of Al aska public schools
and has taught for 20 years. She said she has also taught in
rural Al aska.

CHAI R STEVENS t hanked Ms. Mann for testifying.

8:42: 24 AM
FRANCES ROBERTS, Teacher, provided information about her
background as part of the confirmation process.

CHAI R STEVENS asked Ms. Roberts why she wants to serve on the
Commi ssi on.

M5. ROBERTS |isted her credentials which included 19 years of
teaching, previous work for the National Wather Service,
menbership on +the school site council, a wunion building
representative, and a nenber of the Honmer City Council for seven
years. She said she has always been interested in being fair and
equal -m nded towards people. She opined that the Conm ssion
focuses on inportant issues.

CHAI R STEVENS t hanked her for her service.

SENATOR GARDNER asked about Ms. Roberts' education |istings. She
requested i nformati on about the "NMSMVE' degree.

M5. ROBERTS replied that it means a "Master's of Science, Math,
and Education, with an enphasis in Education.”

CHAI R STEVENS t hanked her for her comments.
MS. ROBERTS t hanked the commi ttee.

8:44: 39 AM

SENATOR DUNLEAVY noved to forward the nanmes of the nom nees for
t he Al aska Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion to a joint
session of the legislature for confirmation. There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

8:44:54 AM
There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair Stevens adjourned the Senate Education Standing Conmmttee
at 8:44 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- March 20, 2013



